
MINUTES

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Regular Board Meeting
Tuesday, November 22, 2011, 9:00 a.m.

Commissioners’ Conference Room 
Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA

Present: Chairman Leo Bowman
Commissioner James Beaver
Commissioner Shon Small 
County Administrator David Sparks  
Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie

Benton  County  Employees  Present  During  All  or  a  Portion  of  the  Meeting:  Deputy 
Administrator  Loretta  Smith Kelty;  Adam Fyall,  Sustainable  Development  Manager;  Finance 
Manager  Keith  Mercer;  Personnel  Manager  Melina  Wenner;  Human  Services  Manager  Ed 
Thornbrugh;  Public  Works  Manager  Steve  Becken;  Planning  Manager  Mike  Shuttleworth; 
County Engineer Malcolm Bowie; Pat Austin, Superior Court; Jacqueline van Wormer; Jennifer 
Bowe,  Juvenile;  Jacki  Lahtinen,  District  Court;  Central  Services  Manager  Randy Reid;  Sue 
Schuetze, Public Works;  Rosie Sparks, Auditor’s Office.

Approval of Minutes

The Minutes of November 15, 2011 were approved.  

Review Agenda

Consent Agenda item “f” (FG - Purchase Authorization of Tables from Mity-Lite) was pulled.  

Consent Agenda

MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “w”, 
pulling “f”.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following:

Animal Control
a. Agreement w/Petsmart Charities   

Board of Equalization
b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 103

Commissioners
c. Letter to BF Human Services re Lease Payment
d. Contract w/MRSC for Small Works Roster Membership

Facilities
e. Authorization to Prepare Contract w/DNR Systems for Upgrade of OPT022 System

- 1 -



Fairgrounds
g. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0124-101, Dept. No. 000

Human Services
h. Substance  Abuse  Services  Agreement,  #11/13-SA-ESD-00,  w/Educational  Service 

District 123
i. Developmental  Disabilities  Services  Agreement,  #11/12-DD-AWI-00,  w/Ambitions 

Community Support Services, Inc.
j. Agreement, #11/13-PREV-BFSAC-00, w/Benton Franklin Substance Abuse Coalition for 

Project Alert Program
k. Agreement, #11/12-DD-ARC-00, w/The Arc of Tri-Cities, for Developmental Disability 

Services 
l. Appointment of M Green as County Designated Mental Health Professional 
m. Agreement,  #11/12-DD-GW-00,  w/Goodwill  Industries  of  the  Columbia,  Inc.  for 

Developmental Disabilities Services
Juvenile

n. Interagency Agreement w/Administrative Office of the Courts for Interpreter Funding
Personnel 

o. December Employee of the Month Award
Prosecuting Attorney

p. Settlement Agreement w/Emmons 
Public Works

q. Contract w/Allstar Construction Group, Inc. for Piert Road, CID Canal Realignment
r. Authorization to Proceed w/Construction of Piert Road – CID Realignment
s. Approval of Recommendation County Engineer Regarding of Red Mountain Interchange 

Project
t. Approval of 2012 Benton County Road Program

Sheriff
u. Purchase Authorization of Vehicle Firearm Racks from Blac-Rac Manufacturing, Inc.   
v. Agreement Extension w/Keefe Commissary Network, LLC
w. Agreement Extension w/Consolidated Food Management Inc.

The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 9:05 a.m. 

Continued Public Hearing – KID – Right of Way Vacation

Steve Becken said their recommendation continued to be the same to vacate only a portion of the 
right of way and maintain the other for future use. 

Testimony

KID representative said they had no further testimony.  

As there was no one else present to testify, public testimony was closed.  

Commissioner  Small  said he talked to legal  and Public  Works staff  and was ready to move 
forward. 

- 2 -



MOTION:   Commissioner  Small  moved  to  approve  the  vacation  and  abandonment  of  that 
portion of right of way requested for vacation by Kennewick Irrigation District that is located on 
the North/South quarter line of Section 27, Township 8 North, Range 30 East, W.M. and that 
portion located on the East/West quarter line of said Section 27, lying easterly of the maintained 
portion of Erickson Road.  He further moved to deny the vacation and abandonment of that 
portion of the right of way requested for vacation located on the South line of the Southeast 
quarter of the Southeast quarter of said Section 27 and the North line of the Northeast quarter of 
the Northeast quarter of Section 34; and accept staff recommendation.  Commissioner Beaver 
seconded.  

Discussion

Chairman Bowman commented that this did not eliminate the potential to reapply as needed.

Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.  

Public Hearing – Certifying Current Expense Levy/Road Levy/Budgeted Taxes

Mr. Mercer said the public hearing was advertised to certify current expense levy, certify road 
levy,  certify budgeted taxes,  and readopt the county road budget.   However,  they were only 
going to certify taxes at this public hearing and would re-advertise on December 6, 2011 to 
readopt the 2011-2012 Benton County Road Budget.  

Further, he said it was staff’s recommendation to not increase taxes and to bank the 1% for 
adequate funding for future years.  

As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed.  

MOTION:  Commissioner Small  moved to approve the following resolutions: Certifying the 
Current  Expense  Levy  for  2012  Collection;  Certifying  the  County  Road  Levy  for  2012 
Collection;  and Certifying  Budgeted Taxes For Collection  in the Year 2012.  Commissioner 
Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.

Comprehensive Gang Intervention - Presentation

Jacqueline  Van  Wormer  said  in  2009  a  group  sought  federal  grant  monies  to  fund  a 
comprehensive gang intervention program.  They held a very large forum and looked at what 
worked in other communities and other models at reducing gang activity,  violence,  and drug 
involved crimes.  She said the grant was applied for, however, the RFP was cancelled.  Ms. Van 
Wormer indicated they still needed to go forward with this idea and wanted to hire a program 
director to assist with services available, write grants, and use the data for outreach, prevention, 
intervention, suppression, and reintegration.  

She said they met with the three city managers, Franklin County, and SARC and developed a 
funding formula.   The funding amount  from Benton County would be $8,000 to $10,000, if 

- 3 -



everyone else participated as proposed and this proposal would hire a director to get the program 
launched and SARC would absorb the administrative costs.  

Commissioner Beaver said he was agreeable to looking at the program. Commissioner Small 
said he was agreeable  to looking at  it,  however, was concerned about Benton County’s own 
budget issues.  Ms. Van Wormer said they were looking at the “economy version”; the minimum 
amount would be reduced if SARC took over the administrative costs. 

Commissioner Beaver said he was involved in the process and there were 50+ people involved 
and all agreed the programs needed a coordinator.  He said he was encouraged by the approach 
and thought it would be a good move help to coordinate the programs.  He said he was also very 
sensitive to the current money issue.  

Chairman Bowman asked for a summary on costs involved and the proposed split.  He said once 
they received commitments, Benton County could take a very strong look at it.  

Adult and Juvenile Drug Court

Pat Austin said that money had been identified that could be used to fund from Current Expense 
for the Adult and Juvenile Drug Courts.  She said they also tightened up figures and were coming 
in less than previously proposed.  Additionally, the Circle of Hope agreed to donate $1,000 for 
each (Adult and Juvenile) and the Pasco School District submitted a letter of support.  

MOTION:   Commissioner  Small  moved  to  approve  the  line  item  transfer  within  Current 
Expense,  Dept.  115  to  Dept.  138  in  the  amount  of  $205,313.00.   Commissioner  Beaver 
seconded.

Discussion

Commissioner Small asked them to start winding down and said there were no guarantees for 
2013.  

Ms. Austin said they did not guarantee to drug court  participants  that  the funding would be 
available beyond the current budgeted amount.  

Commissioner Beaver said he appreciated the line item transfer from Election Reserve and said 
he  supported  the  program.  He  said  he  was  interested  in  seeing  budget  adjustments  within 
departments if they had budget priorities.  Chairman Bowman said he had always supported drug 
court and believed it had a very positive impact, however, this program was funded a year at a 
time through special funded, one-time money.  

Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.  

- 4 -



Superior Court Judicial Position

Ms. Austin said that Superior Court put their request into the State for the additional judicial 
position.  However, the State had discussed it and decided there would not be any requests sent 
to the Legislature at this time.   

Unscheduled Visitors

Mr. Fyall presented the recent workforce projections from Hanford Communities for the Hanford 
area.  

Frederick  Hopkins,  Prosser,  said  he  was  visiting  the  meeting  to  see  what  was  happening. 
Additionally,  he  said  he  was  concerned  about  money  being  wasted  and  ongoing  expenses. 
Additionally, discussed his concern about the ongoing gang problem.  

Commissioner Assignment Update

BCES Budget

Commissioner Small said the police chiefs met two different days and worked on reducing the 
BCES budget.   He said they had no choice in the maintenance agreement  and upgrades for 
Motorolla.  He encouraged the Board to get in touch with Tony Corsi and said he had tried to 
find ways to minimize costs.  

Commissioner Beaver said he would like the legal team to review the contract and see what 
contractual obligations the County had.  Chairman Bowman said he didn’t like it at all since 
BCES had less to do with CSEPP going away.  Commissioner Small said that CSEPP had helped 
in the cost assessment and now it was truly just to run dispatch.  

911 Study – Memorandum of Understanding

Commissioner Small said the State was going to take care of the contract and pay for everything; 
Benton County just had to agree to the study but was not committed to any funding formula. 
Additionally, it appeared that Franklin County was not going to participate.  

Commissioner Beaver said he was not interested in 70/30 programs and wanted to see something 
in writing. 

Hiring Freezes 

Commissioner Small said he was still interested in seeing some options regarding hiring freezes. 
The Board agreed. 

- 5 -



Monthly Financial Reports 

The Board discussed the monthly financial reports prepared by the Auditor.  Mr. Sparks said he 
talked with the Auditor and that he would be getting together with Van Petty and Loretta Smith 
Kelty to make sure there was an explanation that went along with the monthly financial reports. 
He  said  it  was  created  as  an  internal  document,  but  now  was  being  published  so  more 
explanation was needed to go along with the report.   

Commissioner Beaver - Report

Commissioner Beaver reported on his meetings with TRIDEC and Council of Governments and 
Mary Selecki (State Health District). Also mentioned he received quite a compliment about the 
Planning Department on the Agri-Northwest project.  

Additionally, he requested Mr. Sparks review the current daily rental charge for a 4-wheel drive 
vehicle being used by the Commissioners’ office.  Mr. Sparks said he was already working on 
that.  

Chairman Bowman - Report

Chairman  Bowman  reported  on  his  attendance  at  the  Columbia  Regional  Economic 
Development Investment Trust retreat (to review bylaws and management plan, etc.) and WSAC 
meeting.  

Request by City of Prosser

Chairman Bowman said he received an invitation to attend the “Hundred Cities” event on the 
27th but could not attend.  Commissioner Small said he would attend.  

RSN

Chairman Bowman asked about the Governor’s message to consolidate the RSN’s from 13 to 
less  than seven.   Ed Thornbrugh said he  felt  strong that  GCBH would survive  as  an RSN, 
although it might have to take on a few other counties. 

Chairman Bowman discussed other state proposed budget cuts that could potentially affect the 
county budget further.  

Claim for Damages

CC 2011-28: Received on November 17, 2011 from CenturyLink

- 6 -



Vouchers

Check Date: 11/18/2011
Warrant #: 45833-46220
Taxes #: 010111115, 011611111, 050111111
Total all funds: $590,913.02

Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office.

Resolutions

11.733 Agreement w/Petsmart Charities   
11.734 Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 103
11.735 Contract w/MRSC for Small Works Roster Membership
11.736 Authorization  to  Prepare  Contract  w/DNR  Systems  for  Upgrade  of  OPT022 

System
11.737 Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0124-101, Dept. No. 000
11.738 Substance  Abuse  Services  Agreement,  #11/13-SA-ESD-00,  w/Educational 

Service District 123
11.739 Developmental  Disabilities  Services  Agreement,  #11/12-DD-AWI-00, 

w/Ambitions Community Support Services, Inc.
11.740 Agreement,  #11/13-PREV-BFSAC-00,  w/Benton  Franklin  Substance  Abuse 

Coalition for Project Alert Program
11.741 Agreement,  #11/12-DD-ARC-00,  w/The  Arc  of  Tri-Cities,  for  Developmental 

Disability Services 
11.742 Appointment of M Green as County Designated Mental Health Professional 
11.743 Agreement, #11/12-DD-GW-00, w/Goodwill Industries of the Columbia, Inc. for 

Developmental Disabilities Services
11.744 Interagency  Agreement  w/Administrative  Office  of  the  Courts  for  Interpreter 

Funding
11.745 Settlement Agreement w/Emmons 
11.746 Contract  w/Allstar  Construction  Group,  Inc.  for  Piert  Road,  CID  Canal 

Realignment
11.747 Authorization to Proceed w/Construction of Piert Road – CID Realignment
11.748 Approval  of  Recommendation  County  Engineer  Regarding  of  Red  Mountain 

Interchange Project
11.749 Approval of 2012 Benton County Road Program
11.750 Purchase Authorization of Vehicle Firearm Racks from Blac-Rac Manufacturing, 

Inc.   
11.751 Agreement Extension w/Keefe Commissary Network, LLC
11.752 Agreement Extension w/Consolidated Food Management Inc.
11.753 Certifying the Current Expense Levy for 2012 Collection
11.754 Certifying the County Road Levy for 2012 Collection
11.755 Certifying Budgeted Taxes for Collection in the Year 2012 
11.756 Transfer of Funds – Dept. 115 to Dept. 138 – Drug Court

- 7 -



There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 10:30 
a.m. 

_______________________________ ______________________________
Clerk of the Board Chairman

- 8 -


	Approval of Minutes
	Review Agenda
	Comprehensive Gang Intervention - Presentation


	Adult and Juvenile Drug Court
	Discussion

	Unscheduled Visitors
	Commissioner Assignment Update
	BCES Budget
	911 Study – Memorandum of Understanding
	Hiring Freezes 
	Monthly Financial Reports 
	Commissioner Beaver - Report
	Chairman Bowman - Report
	Request by City of Prosser
	RSN

	Claim for Damages
	Vouchers


